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§ G9:1 Part II, Chapter 2: Sanctions in the Medicare statute
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§ G9:3 Part II, Chapter 4: Sanctions in Title XI of the Social Security Act

PART II. TEXT

CHAPTER 1. PERSONS AND ENTITIES SUBJECT TO SANCTIONS
§ 1:1 Hospitals—Section 1861(e) [42 U.S.C.A. 1395x(e)]
§ 1:2 Psychiatric Hospitals—Section 1861(f) [42 U.S.C.A. 1395x(f)]
§ 1:3 Providers of Outpatient Physical or Occupational Therapy Services—Sections 1861(g) and (p)

[42 U.S.C.A. 1395x(g) and (p)]
§ 1:4 Skilled Nursing Facilities—Section 1861(j) [42 U.S.C.A. 1395x(j)]
§ 1:5 Suppliers of Durable Medical Equipment—Section 1861(n) [42 U.S.C.A. 1395x(n)]
§ 1:6 Home Health Agencies and Others Engaged in Providing Home Health Services—Section

1861(m) and (o) [42 U.S.C.A. 1395x(m) and (o)]
§ 1:7 Physicians—Section 1861(r) [42 U.S.C.A. 1395x(r)]
§ 1:8 Suppliers of Medical and Other Health Services (Not Previously Mentioned)—Section 1861(s)

[42 U.S.C.A. 1395x(s)]
§ 1:9 Religious Non-medical Health Care Institutions Providing Extended Care of Home Health

Services—Section 1861(v), (ss), and (aaa) [42 U.S.C.A. 1395x(v), (ss), and (aaa)]
§ 1:10 Rural Health Clinics—Section 1861(aa) [42 U.S.C.A. 1395x(aa)]
§ 1:11 Federally Qualified Health Centers—Sections 1861(aa)(3) and (4) [42 U.S.C.A. 1395x(aa)(3)

and (4)]
§ 1:12 Physician Assistants, Nurse Practitioners, and Clinical Nurse Specialists—Section

1861(aa)(5) [42 U.S.C.A. 1395x(aa)(5)]
§ 1:13 Certified Registered Nurse Anesthetists—Section 1861(bb) [42 U.S.C.A. 1395x(bb)]
§ 1:14 Comprehensive Outpatient Rehabilitation Facilities—Section 1861(cc) [42 U.S.C.A. 1395x(cc)]
§ 1:15 Hospices—Section 1861(dd) [42 U.S.C.A. 1395x(dd)]
§ 1:16 Certified Nurse Midwives—Section 1861(gg) [42 U.S.C.A. 1395x(gg)]
§ 1:17 Clinical Social Workers—Section 1861(hh) [42 U.S.C.A. 1395x(hh)]
§ 1:18 Psychologists—Section 1861(ii) [42 U.S.C.A. 1395x(ii)]
§ 1:19 Speech-Language Pathologists and Audiologists—Section 1861(ll)(1) [42 U.S.C.A. 1395x(ll)(1)]
§ 1:20 Audiologists—Section 1861(ll)(3) [42 U.S.C.A. 1395x(ll)(3)]
§ 1:21 Critical Access Hospital—Section 1861(mm) [42 U.S.C.A. 1395x(mm)]
§ 1:22 “Non-Providers” Who Provide Emergency Hospital Services—Section 1814(d) [42 U.S.C.A.

1395f(d)]
§ 1:23 “Non-Providers” Who Provide Inpatient Hospital Services Outside the United States—Section

1814(f) [42 U.S.C.A. 1395f(f)]
§ 1:24 Medicare Administrative Contractors (formerly known as Fiscal Intermediaries for Medicare

Part A or Carriers for Medicare Part B)—Section 1816, Section 1842, and Section 1847A [42
U.S.C.A. 1395h and 1395u]

§ 1:25 Ambulatory Surgical Centers—Section 1832(a)(2)(F) [42 U.S.C.A. 1395k(a)(2)(F)]
§ 1:26 Medicare Advantage [formerly Medicare+Choice] Organizations—Sections 1851 to 1857
§ 1:27 Quality Improvement Organizations (formerly Peer Review Organizations)—Section 1862(g)

[42 U.S.C.A. 1395y(g)]
§ 1:28 Health Maintenance Organizations and Competitive Medical Plans—Section 1876 [42

U.S.C.A. 1395mm]
§ 1:29 End Stage Renal Disease Network Area Administrative Organizations and Renal Dialysis

Facilities—Section 1881 [42 U.S.C.A. 1395rr]
§ 1:30 Sellers of Medicare Supplemental Health Insurance Policies—Section 1882 [42 U.S.C.A.

1395ss]
§ 1:31 Pace Providers: Section 1894 [42 U.S.C.A. 1395eee]
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§ 1:32 Medicaid Beneficiaries
§ 1:33 Medicaid Recipients—Section 1902(a)(10) [42 U.S.C.A. 1396a(a)(10)]
§ 1:34 Intermediate Care Facilities and Intermediate Care Facilities for the Mentally Retarded—

Section 1902(a)(13) [42 U.S.C.A. 1396a(a)(13)]
§ 1:35 Institutions for Mental Disease (Private or Public)—Sections 1902(a)(20) and (21) and 1905(i)

[42 U.S.C.A. 1396a(a)(20) and (21) and 1396d(i)]
§ 1:36 Providers of Home and Community Care for Functionally Disabled Elderly Individuals—

Section 1929 [42 U.S.C.A. 1396u]
§ 1:37 Providers of Community Supported Living Arrangements Services—Section 1930 [42

U.S.C.A. 1396v]

CHAPTER 2. SANCTIONS IN THE MEDICARE STATUTE
§ 2:1 Violation of Requirements for Private Contracts with Medicare Beneficiaries by Physicians

and Other Practitioners—Section 1802(b) [42 U.S.C.A. 1395a(b)]
§ 2:2 Failure by Physicians, Providers, Suppliers, and Others to Furnish an Itemized Statement of

Items and Services Provided to Medicare Beneficiaries—Section 1806 [42 U.S.C.A. 1395b-7]
§ 2:3 Falsifying Assessments of Residents of Skilled Nursing Facilities—Section 1819(b)(3)(B)(ii)

[42 U.S.C.A. 1395i-3(b)(3)(B)(ii)]
§ 2:4 Abuse or Neglect of Skilled Nursing Facility Residents or Misappropriation of their

Property—Section 1819(g)(1)(C) [42 U.S.C.A. 1395i-3(g)(1)(C)]
§ 2:5 Giving a Skilled Nursing Facility Advance Notice of a State or Federal Survey—Section

1819(g)(2) [42 U.S.C.A. 1395i-3(g)(2)]
§ 2:6 Failing a Skilled Nursing Facility Survey—Sections 1819(g) and (h) [42 U.S.C.A. 1395i-3(g)

and (h)]
§ 2:7 Improper Billing for Clinical Diagnostic Laboratory Tests—Section 1833(h)(5)(D) [42 U.S.C.A.

1395l(h)(5)(D)]
§ 2:8 Improper billing for Intraocular Lenses—Section 1833(i)(6) [42 U.S.C.A. 1395l(i)(6)]
§ 2:9 Improper Billing for Services of a Certified Registered Nurse Anesthetist—Section

1833(l)(5)(B) [42 U.S.C.A. 1395l(l)(5)(B)]
§ 2:10 Overcharging by Physicians for Services of a Certified Registered Nurse Anesthetist—Section

1833(l)(6) [42 U.S.C.A. 1395l(l)(6)]
§ 2:11 Improper Billing for Certified Nurse-Midwife Services and Services of Qualified Psychologists

and Clinical Social Workers—Section 1833(p) [42 U.S.C.A. 1395l(p)]
§ 2:12 Failure to Include Information About Referring Physicians on Requests for Payments or

Bills—Section 1833(q) [42 U.S.C.A. 1395l(q)]
§ 2:13 Failure to Bill on an Assignment-Related Basis for Covered Services of a Nurse Practitioner

or Clinical Nurse Specialist—Section 1833(r)(3)(B) [42 U.S.C.A. 1395(r)(3)(B)]
§ 2:14 Improper Billing for Rental Items Such as Durable Medical Equipment, Prosthetic Devices,

Orthotics, and Prosthetics—Section 1834(a)(11)(A) [42 U.S.C.A. 1395m(a)(11)(A)]
§ 2:15 Improper Distribution by Suppliers of Forms Documenting Medical Necessity—Section

1834(a)(16) [42 U.S.C.A. 1395m(a)(16)]
§ 2:16 Violation of Prohibition Against Unsolicited Telephone Contacts by Suppliers Section

1834(a)(17) [42 U.S.C.A. 1395m(a)(17)]
§ 2:17 Failure by Suppliers to Make Required Refunds Section 1834(a)(18) [42 U.S.C.A.

1395m(a)(18)]
§ 2:18 Improper Billing by Physicians or Suppliers for Radiologist Services—Section 1834(b)(5)(C)

[42 U.S.C.A. 1395m(b)(5)(C)]
§ 2:19 Overcharging for Services of a Physician Assistant or Nurse Practitioner—Section

1842(b)(12)(C) [42 U.S.C.A. 1395u(b)(12)(C)]
§ 2:20 Failure by Practitioners to Bill on an Assignment-Related Basis—Section 1842(b)(18) and

Sections 1834(k) and (l) [42 U.S.C.A. 1395u(b)(18) and 42 U.S.C.A. 1394m(k) and (l)]
§ 2:21 Denial, Termination, and Nonrenewal of Physician and Supplier Participation Agreements—

Section 1842(h) [42 U.S.C.A. 1395u(h)]
§ 2:22 Violating the Freeze on Physician Fees—Section 1842(j)(1) [42 U.S.C.A. 1395u(j)(1)]
§ 2:23 Improper Billing for Services of Assistants at Cataract and Other Types of Surgery—Sections

1842(k)(1) and (2) [42 U.S.C.A. 1395u(k)(1) and (2)]
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§ 2:24 Wrongful Charges by Nonparticipating Physicians—Section 1842(l) [42 U.S.C.A. 1395u(l)]
§ 2:25 Wrongful Charges by Nonparticipating Physicians for Certain Elective Surgical Procedures—

Section 1842(m) [42 U.S.C.A. 1395u(m)]
§ 2:26 Physician Failure to Eliminate the Mark-Up for Certain Purchased Diagnostic Tests—Section

1842(n) [42 U.S.C.A. 1395u(n)]
§ 2:27 Failure by Physicians and Other Practitioners to Provide Appropriate Diagnosis Codes on

Bills—Section 1842(p) [42 U.S.C.A. 1395u(p)]
§ 2:28 Intermediate Sanctions for Providers or Suppliers of Clinical Diagnostic Laboratory Tests—

Section 1846 [42 U.S.C.A. 1395w-2]
§ 2:29 Misrepresentation in Reporting Manufacturer’s Average Sales Price for a Drug or

Biological—Section 1847A(d)(4) [42 U.S.C.A. 1395]
§ 2:30 Wrongful Charges for Interpreting Electrocardiograms—Section 1848(b)(3) [42 U.S.C.A.

1395w-4(b)(3)]
§ 2:31 Violating Limitations on Physician Charges by Nonparticipating Physicians, Suppliers, or

Other Persons after 1990—Section 1848(g)(1) [42 U.S.C.A. 1395w-4(g)(1)]
§ 2:32 Failure to Bill on an Assignment-Related Basis for Services to Persons Enrolled under

Medicare Part B and Eligible for Medicaid—Section 1848(g)(3) [42 U.S.C.A. 1395w-4(g)(3)]
§ 2:33 Failure by Physicians, Suppliers, and Others, Including Their Employers and Related

Facilities, to Submit Claims on Specified Claim Forms—Section 1848(g)(4) [42 U.S.C.A.
1395w-4(g)(4)]

§ 2:34 Termination of Medicare Advantage [formerly Medicare+Choice] Contracts—Section
1857(c)(2)

§ 2:35 Failure by Medicare Advantage [formerly Medicare+Choice] Organizations to Comply with
Requirements for Beneficiary Protections and Protections Against Fraud—Section 1857(d)

§ 2:36 Failure to comply with requirements of the Medicare Coverage Gap Discount Program—
Section 1860D-14A [42 U.S.C.A. 1395w-114A]

§ 2:37 Sanctions for Abusive Practices by Sponsors of Medicare Prescription Drug Discount Cards—
Section 1860D-31 [42 U.S.C.A. 1395w-141]

§ 2:38 Failure by Primary Payers to Comply with Medicare Secondary Payer Requirements—
Section 1862(b) [42 U.S.C.A. 1395y(b)]

§ 2:39 Failure by Employers to Comply with Medicare Secondary Payer Requirements—Section
1862(b)(5)(C)(ii) [42 U.S.C.A. 1395y(b)(5)(C)(ii)]

§ 2:40 Violation of Medicare Secondary Payer Screening and Information Gathering Requirements
by Providers, Suppliers, and Various Group Health Plans and Insurers—Section 1862(b)(6),
(7), and (8) [42 U.S.C.A. 1395y(b)(6), (7) and (8)]

§ 2:41 Prohibition Against Payment to Individuals and Entities Sanctioned under the Social
Security Act—Section 1862(e) [42 U.S.C.A. 1395y(e)]

§ 2:42 Special Obligations Regarding Pacemakers—Section 1862(h) [42 U.S.C.A. 1395y(h)]
§ 2:43 Publicizing Providers Survey Results—Section 1864 [42 U.S.C.A. 1395aa]
§ 2:44 Terminating Provider Agreements and Denying Providers and Suppliers the Right to Enroll

or Renew Enrollment in Medicare—Sections 1866(b) and (j) [42 U.S.C.A. 1395cc(b) and (j)]
§ 2:45 Failure by Certain Hospitals not Subject to OSHA to Comply with Bloodborne Pathogens

Standards—Section 1866(b)(4) [42 U.S.C.A. 1395cc(b)(4)]
§ 2:46 Failure by Hospitals to Make Timely Review of Long-Stay Cases—Section 1866(d) [42

U.S.C.A. 1395cc(d)]
§ 2:47 Failure by Hospitals to Have Arrangements which Preclude Certain Practitioners and

Suppliers from Seeking Further Payment from Beneficiaries—Section 1866(g) [42 U.S.C.A.
1395cc(g)]

§ 2:48 Failure by Hospitals and Certain Physicians to Examine and Treat Persons for Emergency
Medical Conditions and Women in Labor—Section 1867 [42 U.S.C.A. 1395(dd)]

§ 2:49 Failure by Organizations with Risk-Sharing Contracts under Medicare (such as Health
Maintenance Organizations and Competitive Medical Plans) to Provide Required
Information about Their Services—Section 1876(c)(3)(C) [42 U.S.C.A. 1395mm(c)(3)(C)]

§ 2:50 Failure by Organizations with Risk-Sharing Contracts under Medicare (Such As Health
Maintenance Organizations and Competitive Medical Plans) to Have at Least One-Half of
Their Enrolled Members Be Persons Not Eligible for Medicare or Medicaid—Section 1876(f)
[42 U.S.C.A. 1395mm(f)]
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§ 2:51 Failure by Organizations with Risk-Sharing Contracts (Such As Health Maintenance
Organizations and Competitive Medical Plans) to Make Prompt Payment of Claims—
Section 1876(g) [42 U.S.C.A. 1395mm(g)]

§ 2:52 Limiting Cost Reimbursement to Risk-Sharing Organizations (Such As Health Maintenance
Organizations and Competitive Medical Plans) Not Eligible to Participate in Medicare—
Section 1876(h) [42 U.S.C.A. 1395mm(h)]

§ 2:53 Terminating Contracts of Risk-Sharing Organizations (Such as Health Maintenance
Organizations and Competitive Medical Plans)—Section 1876(i)(1) [42 U.S.C.A.
1395mm(i)(1)]

§ 2:54 Failure by Risk-Sharing Organizations (Such as Health Maintenance Organizations and
Competitive Medical Plans) to Comply with Requirements for Provision of Services,
Premiums, Treatment of Applicants and Members, Truthfulness, Prompt Payment, and
Avoiding Business Relationships with Excluded Individuals and Entities—Section 1876(i)(6)
[42 U.S.C.A. 1395mm(i)(6)]

§ 2:55 Violating Limitations on Physician Referrals and Related Reporting Requirements—Section
1877 [42 U.S.C.A. 1395nn]

§ 2:56 Terminating Agreements with End Stage Renal Disease Network Area Organizations—
Section 1881(c)(1) [42 U.S.C.A. 1395rr(c)(1)]

§ 2:57 Failure by End Stage Renal Disease Facilities and Providers of End Stage Renal Disease
Care to Cooperate with End Stage Renal Disease Network Plans and Goals and Failure to
Follow End Stage Renal Disease Medical Review Board Recommendations—Section
1881(c)(3) and (g) [42 U.S.C.A. 1395rr(c)(3) and (g)]

§ 2:58 Issuing Medicare Supplemental Health Insurance Policies in Violation of State or Federal
Standards—Section 1882(a)(2) [42 U.S.C.A. 1395ss(a)(2)]

§ 2:59 Misrepresentation and Fraud in Obtaining and Using Secretarial Certification of Medicare
Supplemental Health Insurance Policies—Section 1882(d)(1) [42 U.S.C.A. 1395ss(d)(1)]

§ 2:60 Misrepresentation by Sellers of Medicare Supplemental Health Insurance Policies That They
Act by Authority of or in Association with Medicare or Any Federal Agency—Section
1882(d)(2) [42 U.S.C.A. 1395ss(d)(2)]

§ 2:61 Selling Medicare Beneficiaries Supplemental Health Insurance Policies That Duplicate
Medicare Benefits/Not Obtaining a Valid Buyer’s Statement/Not Preparing Seller’s
Acknowledgment/Failing to Comply with Disclosure Requirements—Section 1882(d)(3) [42
U.S.C.A. 1395ss(d)(3)]

§ 2:62 Using the Mail to Market Medicare Supplemental Health Insurance Policies Which Have Not
Been State-Approved—Section 1882(d)(4) [42 U.S.C.A. 1395ss(d)(4)]

§ 2:63 Issuing or Selling Medicare Supplemental Health Insurance Policies That Do Not Comply
with Form and Content Requirements—Section 1882(p)(8) [42 U.S.C.A. 1395ss(p)(8)]

§ 2:64 Failure to Offer a Medicare Supplemental Health Insurance Policy That Provides Only the
Core Group of Basic Benefits—Section 1882(p)(9)(C) [42 U.S.C.A. 1395ss(p)(9)(C)]

§ 2:65 Failure to Provide Reinstatement Rights to Purchasers of Medicare Supplemental Health
Insurance Polices Who Become Eligible for Medicaid—Section 1882(q)(5) [42 U.S.C.A.
1395ss(q)(5)]

§ 2:66 Failure by Issuers of Medicare Supplemental Health Insurance Policies to Meet
Requirements for Preexisting Conditions, Waiting Periods, Elimination Periods,
Probationary Periods, and Price and Coverage Nondiscrimination—Section 1882(s)(3) [42
U.S.C.A. 1395ss(s)(3)]

§ 2:67 Special Obligations for Issuers of Medicare Supplemental Health Insurance Policies Who
Provide Benefits through Contracts with Networks of Providers (MEDICARE SELECT)—
Section 1882(t)(2) [42 U.S.C.A. 1395ss(t)(2)]

§ 2:68 Failure by Issuers of Medicare Supplemental Insurance to Comply with Prohibitions on Sale,
Issuance, and Renewal of Medicare Supplemental Plans that Provide Prescription Drug
Coverage—Section 1882(v) [42 U.S.C.A. 1395ss-(v)]

§ 2:69 Terminating Provider Agreements of Hospital Providers of Extended Care Services—Section
1883 [42 U.S.C.A. 1395tt]

§ 2:70 Withholding Medicare Payments from Overpaid Medicaid Providers—Section 1885 [42
U.S.C.A. 1395vv]

§ 2:71 Discontinuing and Reducing Payments to Hospitals for Inpatient Hospital Services in States
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Which Have Alternative (Non-Federal DRG) Hospital Reimbursement Systems—Section
1886(c) [42 U.S.C.A. 1395ww(c)]

§ 2:72 Unnecessary Hospital Admissions and Other Inappropriate Practices by Hospitals to
Circumvent Reimbursement Requirements—Section 1886(f) [42 U.S.C.A. 1395ww(f)]

§ 2:73 Giving a Home Health Agency Advance Notice of a Standard Survey—Section 1891(c)(1) [42
U.S.C.A. 1395bbb(c)(1)]

§ 2:74 Failure by a Home Health Agency to Comply with Medicare Conditions of Participation—
Sections 1891(e) and (f) [42 U.S.C.A. 1395bbb(e) and (f)]

§ 2:75 Offsetting Medicare Payments to Individuals to Collect Past-Due Obligations Arising from
Breach of Scholarship and Loan Contracts—Section 1892 [42 U.S.C.A. 1395ccc]

§ 2:76 Termination of Pace Provider Agreements—Section 1894 [42 U.S.C.A. 1395eee]

CHAPTER 3. SANCTIONS IN THE MEDICAID STATUTE
§ 3:1 Publicizing Findings of State Surveys of Health Care Facilities—Section 1902(a)(36) [42

U.S.C.A. 1396a(a)(36)]
§ 3:2 Additional Penalties for Persons of Entities Sanctioned by Exclusion under Section 1128 or

under Section 1128A—Section 1902(a)(39) [42 U.S.C.A. 1396a(a)(39)]
§ 3:3 Disclosing Information about Sanctions Against Health Care Practitioners and Providers—

Section 1902(a)(49) and Section 1921 [42 U.S.C.A. 1396a(a)(49) and 42 U.S.C.A. 1396r-2]
§ 3:4 Billing Medicaid Eligibles or Financially Responsible Relatives of Representatives for Medical

Expenses When Third Parties Are Liable to Pay—Sections 1902(g) and 1902(a)(25) [42
U.S.C.A. 1396a(g) and 1396a(a)(25)]

§ 3:5 Failure by an Intermediate Care Facility for the Mentally Retarded to Comply with Medicaid
Conditions for Participation—Section 1902(i) [42 U.S.C.A. 1396a(i)]

§ 3:6 Overcharging Medicaid Eligibles Who Are Qualified Medicare Beneficiaries—Section
1902(n)(3) [42 U.S.C.A. 1396a(n)(3)]

§ 3:7 Providing Medicaid Exclusions for the Same Grounds as Medicare Exclusions—Section
1902(p)(1) [42 U.S.C.A. 1396a(p)(1)]

§ 3:8 Excluding Managed Care Organizations and Other Entities Authorized to Implement
Primary Care Case Management or Specialty Physician Services—Section 1902(p)(2) [42
U.S.C.A. 1396a(p)(2)]

§ 3:9 Termination of Medicaid Certification of and Intermediate Sanctions for Psychiatric
Hospitals—Section 1902(y) [42 U.S.C.A. 1396a(y)]

§ 3:10 Failure by Managed Care Organizations to Comply with Medicaid Requirements—Section
1903(m)(5) [42 U.S.C.A. 1396b(m)(5)]

§ 3:11 Failure by States to Meet Medicaid Plan Requirements—Section 1904 [42 U.S.C.A. 1396c]
§ 3:12 Cancelling Certification and Approval of Skilled Nursing Facilities, Intermediate Care

Facilities, and Intermediate Care Facilities for the Mentally Retarded—Section 1910 [42
U.S.C.A. 1396i]

§ 3:13 Disapproving Rural Health Clinic Applications for Certification—Section 1910(a) [42 U.S.C.A.
1396i(a)]

§ 3:14 Requiring States to Withhold Medicaid Underpayments to Offset Medicare Overpayments—
Section 1914 [42 U.S.C.A. 1396m]

§ 3:15 Failure by Nursing Facilities to Comply with Medicaid Requirements for Resident
Assessments—Section 1919(b) [42 U.S.C.A. 1396r(b)]

§ 3:16 Abuse or Neglect of Nursing Facilities Residents or Misappropriation of their Property—
Section 1919(g)(1)(C) [42 U.S.C.A. 1396r(g)(1)(C)]

§ 3:17 Giving Nursing Facilities Advance Notice of a Survey—Section 1919(g)(2)(A)(i) [42 U.S.C.A.
1396r(g)(2)(A)(i)]

§ 3:18 Failing a Nursing Facility Survey—Sections 1919(g)(5) and 1919(h), [42 U.S.C.A. 1396r(g)(5),
1396r(h)]

§ 3:19 Failure by Intermediate Care Facilities for the Mentally Retarded to Meet Federal
Standards—Section 1922 [42 U.S.C.A. 1396r-3]

§ 3:20 Failure by Drug Manufacturers and Wholesalers to Comply with Medicaid Drug Rebate
Requirements—Section 1927 [42 U.S.C.A. 1396s]
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§ 3:21 Giving Advance Notice of a Survey to a Community Care Setting for Functionally Disabled
Elderly Individuals—Section 1929(i)(3)(A) [42 U.S.C.A. 1396u(i)(3)(A)]

§ 3:22 Neglect and Abuse and Misappropriation of Property of Individuals in Home and Community
Care Settings for Functionally Disabled Elderly Individuals—Section 1929(i)(5) [42 U.S.C.A.
1396u(i)(5)]

§ 3:23 Disclosure of Inspection Reports and Activities Related to Home and Community Care
Settings for Functionally Disabled Elderly Individuals—Section 1929(i)(6) [42 U.S.C.A.
1396u(i)(6)]

§ 3:24 Failure by Home and Community Care Settings for Functionally Disabled Elderly
Individuals to Comply with Medicaid Requirements—Section 1929(j) [42 U.S.C.A. 1396u(j)]

§ 3:25 Failure by Providers of Community Supported Living Arrangements Services to Comply with
Statutory Requirements—Section 1930(h)(2) [42 U.S.C.A. 1396v(h)(2)]

§ 3:26 Failure by Medicaid Managed Care Organizations to Comply with Fraud and Abuse
Protection Requirements—Sections 1932(d) and (e) [42 U.S.C.A. 1396u-2(e)]

§ 3:27 Termination of Medicaid Contracts with Managed Care Entities—Section 1932(e)(4) [42
U.S.C.A. 1396u-2(e)(4)]

§ 3:28 Termination of Medicaid Pace Provider Agreements—Section 1934(e)(5) [42 U.C.S.A.
1396u-4(e)(5)]

§ 3:29 Intermediate Sanctions for Medicaid Pace Providers—Section 1934(e)(6)(B) [42 U.S.C.A.
1396u-4(e)(6)(B)]

CHAPTER 4. SANCTIONS IN TITLE XI OF THE SOCIAL SECURITY
ACT
§ 4:1 Disclosure of Information in the Possession of the Secretary of Health and Human Services—

Section 1106 [42 U.S.C.A. 1306]
§ 4:2 False Representations about Requirements of the Social Security Act—Section 1107(a) [42

U.S.C.A. 1307]
§ 4:3 False Representations to Elicit Information from the Secretary of Health and Human

Services—Section 1107(b) [42 U.S.C.A. 1307(b)]
§ 4:4 Failure to Comply with State Health Planning Requirements—Section 1122 [42 U.S.C.A.

1320a-1]
§ 4:5 Failure to Comply with Subpoenas Issued by the Comptroller General—Section 1125(b) [42

U.S.C.A. 1320a-4(b)]
§ 4:6 Exclusion from Medicare and State Health Care Programs—Section 1128 [42 U.S.C.A.

1320a-6]
§ 4:7 Disclosure by Institutions, Organizations and Agencies of Owners and Other Individuals

Sanctioned or Convicted and of Certain Business Relationships—Sections 1128(b)(9) and
(10), 1124, 1124A, and 1126 [42 U.S.C.A. 1320a-7(b)(9) and (10), 1320a-3, 1320a-3a, and
1320a-5]

§ 4:8 Civil Money Penalties—Section 1128A [42 U.S.C.A. 1320a-7a]
§ 4:9 Criminal Penalties: False Statements, False Representations, Concealment, Failure to

Disclose, Wrongful Conversion of Benefits and Payments, Claims for Physicians’ Services by
Persons Not Licensed as a Physician, and Disposal of Assets to Obtain Medicaid
Eligibility—Section 1128B(a) [42 U.S.C.A. 1320a-7b(a)]

§ 4:10 Criminal Penalties: Kickbacks, Bribes, and Rebates—Section 1128B(b) [42 U.S.C.A.
1320a-7b(b)]

§ 4:11 Criminal Penalties: False Statements and False Representations to Qualify for Provider
Status—Section 1128B(c) [42 U.S.C.A. 1320a-7b(c)]

§ 4:12 Criminal Penalties: Excessive Medicaid Charges and Unlawful Financial Preconditions for
Care in Hospitals and Nursing Facilities—Section 1128B(d) [42 U.S.C.A. 1320a-7b(d)]

§ 4:13 Criminal Penalties: Violating a Physician or Supplier Participation Agreement or a Medicare
Assignment of Benefits Agreement—Section 1128B(e) [42 U.S.C.A. 1320a-7b(e)]

§ 4:14 Failure to Report Information about Final Adverse Actions Against against Health Care
Providers, Suppliers, and Practitioners to the National Health Care Fraud and Abuse Data
Collections Program—Section 1128E(b)(6) [42 U.S.C.A. 1320a-7e(b)(6)]
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§ 4:15 Failure to Comply with Requirements to Report Physician Ownership and Investment
Interests and Requirements for Transparency Reports—Section 1128G [42 U.S.C.A.
1320a-7h]

§ 4:16 Failure to Comply with Accountability Requirements for Medicaid Nursing Facilities and
Medicare Skilled Nursing Facilities—Section 1128I [42 U.S.C.A. 1320a-7(j)]

§ 4:17 Failure to Timely Report and Return Overpayments and to Comply with Medicare and
Medicaid Program Integrity Provisions—Section 1128j [42 U.S.C.A. 1320a-7(k)]

§ 4:18 Failure by Health Benefits Plans and Pharmacy Benefit Managers to Timely Provide
Required Information—Section 1150A [42 U.S.C.A. 1320b-23]

§ 4:19 Failure to Report Crimes Occurring in Federally-funded Long Term Care Facilities—Section
1150B [42 U.S.C.A. 1320b-24]

§ 4:20 Misuse of Federal Government Names, Symbols, and Emblems—Section 1140 [42 U.S.C.A.
1320b-10]

§ 4:21 Violating Reporting and Disclosure Obligations Regarding the Medicare and Medicaid
Coverage Date Bank—Section 1144 [42 U.S.C.A. 1320b-14]

§ 4:22 Public Access to Information about Hospital Financial Interests in Entities to Which
Referrals of Patients Are Made—Sections 1146 and 1866(a)(1)(S) [42 U.S.C.A. 1320b-16 and
1395cc(a)(1)(S)]

§ 4:23 Terminating Contracts with Quality Improvement Organizations [Formerly Peer Review
Organizations]—Section 1153 [42 U.S.C.A. 1320c-2]

§ 4:24 Disallowance of Medicare Claims by Quality Improvement Organizations [Formerly Peer
Review Organizations]—Section 1154 [42 U.S.C.A. 1320c-3]

§ 4:25 Sanctions Recommended by Quality Improvement Organizations [Formerly Peer Review
Organizations]—Section 1156 [42 U.S.C.A. 1320c-5]

§ 4:26 Unlawful Disclosure of Information Obtained by Quality Improvement Organizations
[Formerly Peer Review Organizations]—Section 1160 [42 U.S.C.A. 1320c-9]

§ 4:27 Disqualification of Physicians from Giving Second Opinions about Surgery—Section
1164(b)(4)(D) [42 U.S.C.A. 1320c-13(b)(4)(D)]

CHAPTER 5. REGULATIONS: SANCTIONS IN THE MEDICARE
STATUTE
§ 5:1 Falsifying Assessments of Residents of Skilled Nursing Facilities—Section 1819(b)(3)(B)(ii)

[42 U.S.C.A. 1395i-3(b)(3)(B)(ii)]
§ 5:2 Violation of Requirements for Private Contracts with Medicare Beneficiaries by Physicians

and Other Practitioners—Section 1802(b) [42 U.S.C.A. 1395a(b)]
§ 5:3 Failure by Physicians, Providers, Suppliers, and Others to Furnish an Itemized Statement of

Items and Services Provided to Medicare Beneficiaries—Section 1806 [42 U.S.C.A. 1395b-7]
§ 5:4 Abuse or Neglect of Skilled Nursing Facility Residents or Misappropriation of Their

Property—Section 1819(g)(1)(C) [42 U.S.C.A. 1395i-3(g)(1)(C)]
§ 5:5 Giving a Skilled Nursing Facility Advance Notice of a State or Federal Survey—Section

1819(g)(2) [42 U.S.C.A. 1395i-3(g)(2)]
§ 5:6 Failing a Skilled Nursing Facility Survey—Sections 1819(g) and (h) [42 U.S.C.A. 1395i-3(g)

and (h)]
§ 5:7 Improper Billing for Clinical Diagnostic Laboratory Tests—Section 1833(h)(5)(D) [42 U.S.C.A.

1395l(h)(5)(D)]
§ 5:8 Improper Billing for Intraocular Lenses—Section 1833(i)(6) [42 U.S.C.A. 1395l(i)(6)]
§ 5:9 Improper Billing for Services of a Certified Registered Nurse Anesthetist—Section

1833(l)(5)(B) [42 U.S.C.A. 1395l(l)(5)(B)]
§ 5:10 Overcharging by Physicians for Services of a Certified Registered Nurse Anesthetist—Section

1833(l)(6) [42 U.S.C.A. 1395l(l)(6)]
§ 5:11 Improper Billing for Certified Nurse-Midwife Services and Services of Qualified Psychologists

and Clinical Social Workers—Section 1833(p) [42 U.S.C.A. 1395l(p)]
§ 5:12 Failure to Include Information about Referring Physicians on Requests for Payments or

Bills—Section 1833(q) [42 U.S.C.A. 1395l(q)]
§ 5:13 Failure to Bill on an Assignment-Related Basis for Covered Services of a Nurse Practitioner

or Clinical Nurse Specialist—Section 1833(r)(3)(B) [42 U.S.C.A. 1395(r)(3)(B)]
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§ 5:14 Improper Billing for Rental Items Such as Durable Medical Equipment, Prosthetic Devices,
Orthotics, and Prosthetics—Section 1834(a)(11)(A) [42 U.S.C.A. 1395m(a)(11)(A)]

§ 5:15 Improper Distribution by Suppliers of Forms Documenting Medical Necessity—Section
1834(a)(16) [42 U.S.C.A. 1395m(a)(16)]

§ 5:16 Violation of Prohibition Against Unsolicited Telephone Contacts by Suppliers—Section
1834(a)(17) [42 U.S.C.A. 1395m(a)(17)]

§ 5:17 Failure by Suppliers to Make Required Refunds—Section 1834(a)(18) [42 U.S.C.A.
1395m(a)(18)]

§ 5:18 Improper Billing by Physicians or Suppliers for Radiologist Services—Section 1834(b)(5)(C)
[42 U.S.C.A. 1395m(b)(5)(C)]

§ 5:19 Overcharging for Services of a Physician Assistant or Nurse Practitioner—Section
1842(b)(12)(C) [42 U.S.C.A. 1395u(b)(12)(C)]

§ 5:20 Failure by Practitioner to Bill on an Assignment-Related Basis—Section 1842(b)(18) and
Sections 1834(k) and (l) [42 U.S.C.A. 1395u(b)(18) and 42 U.S.C.A. 1394m(k) and (l)]

§ 5:21 Denial, Termination, and Nonrenewal of Physician and Supplier Participation Agreements—
Section 1842(h) [42 U.S.C.A. 1395u(h)]

§ 5:22 Violating the Freeze on Physician Fees—Section 1842(j)(1) [42 U.S.C.A. 1395u(j)(1)]
§ 5:23 Improper Billing for Services of Assistants at Cataract and Other Types of Surgery—Sections

1842(k)(1) and (2) [42 U.S.C.A. 1395u(k)(1) and (2)]
§ 5:24 Wrongful Charges by Nonparticipating Physicians—Section 1842(l) [42 U.S.C.A. 1395u(l)]
§ 5:25 Wrongful Charges by Nonparticipating Physicians for Certain Elective Surgical Procedures—

Section 1842(m) [42 U.S.C.A. 1395u(m)]
§ 5:26 Physician Failure to Eliminate the Mark-Up for Certain Purchased Diagnostic Tests—Section

1842(n) [42 U.S.C.A. 1395u(n)]
§ 5:27 Physician Failure to Provide Appropriate Diagnosis Codes on Bills—Section 1842(p) [42

U.S.C.A. 1395u(p)]
§ 5:28 Intermediate Sanctions for Providers or Suppliers of Clinical Diagnostic Laboratory Tests—

Section 1846 [42 U.S.C.A. 1395w-2]
§ 5:29 Misrepresentation in Reporting Manufacturer’s Average Sales Price for a Drug or

Biological—Section 1847A(d)(4) [42 U.S.C.A. 1395]
§ 5:30 Wrongful Charges for Interpreting Electrocardiograms—Section 1848(b)(3) [42 U.S.C.A.

1395w-4(b)(3)]
§ 5:31 Violating Limitations on Physician Charges by Nonparticipating Physicians, Suppliers, or

Other Persons after 1990—Section 1848(g)(1) [42 U.S.C.A. 1395w-4(g)(1)]
§ 5:32 Failure to Bill on an Assignment-Related Basis for Services to Persons Enrolled under

Medicare Part B and Eligible for Medicaid—Section 1848(g)(3) [42 U.S.C.A. 1395w-4(g)(3)]
§ 5:33 Failure by Physicians, Suppliers, and Others, Including Their Employers and Related

Facilities, to Submit Claims on Specified Claim Forms—Section 1848(g)(4) [42 U.S.C.A.
1395w-(g)(4)]

§ 5:34 Termination of Medicare Advantage [Medicare+Choice] Contracts—Section 1857(c)(2) [42
U.S.C.A. 1395w-27(c)(2)]

§ 5:35 Failure by Medicare Advantage [Medicare+Choice] Organizations to Comply with
Requirements for Beneficiary Protections and Protections against Fraud—Section 1857(d)
[42 U.S.C.A. 1395w-27(d)]

§ 5:36 Failure to Comply with Requirements of the Medicare Coverage Gap Discount Program-
Section 1860D-14A [42 U.S.C.A. 1395w-114A]

§ 5:37 Sanctions for Abusive Practices by Sponsors of Medicare Prescription Drug Discount Cards—
Section 1860D-31 [42 U.S.C.A. 1395w-141]

§ 5:38 Failure by Primary Payers to Comply with Medicare Secondary Payer Requirements—
Section 1862(b) [42 U.S.C.A. 1395y(b)]

§ 5:39 Failure by Employers to Comply with Medicare Secondary Payer Requirements—Section
1862(b)(5)(C)(ii) [42 U.S.C.A. 1395y(b)(5)(C)(ii)]

§ 5:40 Violation of Medicare Secondary Payer Requirements by Providers and Suppliers—Section
1862(b)(6) [42 U.S.C.A. 1395y(b)(6)]

§ 5:41 Prohibition against Payment to Individuals and Entities Sanctioned under the Social
Security Act—Section 1862(e) [42 U.S.C.A. 1395y(e)]
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§ 5:42 Special Obligations Regarding Pacemakers—Section 1862(h) [42 U.S.C.A. 1395y(h)]
§ 5:43 Publicizing Provider Survey Results—Section 1864 [42 U.S.C.A. 1395aa]
§ 5:44 Terminating Provider Agreements and Denying Providers and Suppliers the Right to Enroll

or Renew Enrollment in Medicare—Sections 1866(b) and (j) [42 U.S.C.A. 1395cc(b) and (j)]
§ 5:45 Failure by Hospitals to Make Timely Review of Long-Stay Cases—Section 1866(d) [42

U.S.C.A. 1395cc(d)]
§ 5:46 Failure by Hospitals to Have Arrangements Which Preclude Certain Practitioners and

Suppliers from Seeking Further Payment from Beneficiaries—Section 1866(g) [42 U.S.C.A.
1395cc(g)]

§ 5:47 Failure by Hospitals and Certain Physicians to Examine and Treat Persons for Emergency
Medical Conditions and Women in Labor—Section 1867 [42 U.S.C.A. 1395(dd)]

§ 5:48 Failure by Organizations with Risk-Sharing Contracts under Medicare (Such as Health
Maintenance Organizations and Competitive Medical Plans) to Provide Required
Information about Their Services—Section 1876(c)(3)(C) [42 U.S.C.A. 1395mm(c)(3)(C)]

§ 5:49 Failure by Organizations with Risk-Sharing Contracts under Medicare (Such As Health
Maintenance Organizations and Competitive Medical Plans) to Have at Least One-Half of
Their Enrolled Members Be Persons Not Eligible for Medicare or Medicaid—Section 1876(f)
[42 U.S.C.A. 1395mm(f)]

§ 5:50 Failure by Organizations with Risk-Sharing Contracts (Such as Health Maintenance
Organizations and Competitive Medical Plans) to Make Prompt Payment of Claims—
Section 1876(g) [42 U.S.C.A. 1395mm(g)]

§ 5:51 Limiting Cost Reimbursement to Risk-Sharing Organizations (Such as Health Maintenance
Organizations and Competitive Medical Plans) Not Eligible to Participate in Medicare—
Section 1876(h) [42 U.S.C.A. 1395mm(h)]

§ 5:52 Terminating Contracts of Risk-Sharing Organizations (Such as Health Maintenance
Organizations and Competitive Medical Plans)—Section 1876(i)(1) [42 U.S.C.A.
1395mm(i)(1)]

§ 5:53 Failure by Risk-Sharing Organizations (Such as Health Maintenance Organizations and
Competitive Medical Plans) to Comply with Requirements for Provision of Services,
Premiums, Treatment of Applicants and Members, Truthfulness, Prompt Payment, and
Avoiding Business Relationships with Excluded Individuals and Entities—Section 1876(i)(6)
[42 U.S.C.A. 1395mm(i)(6)]

§ 5:54 Violating Limitations on Physician Referrals and Related Reporting Requirements—Section
1877 [42 U.S.C.A. 1395nn]

§ 5:55 Terminating Agreements with End Stage Renal Disease Network Area Organizations—
Section 1881(c)(1) [42 U.S.C.A. 1395rr(c)(1)]

§ 5:56 Failure by End Stage Renal Disease Facilities and Providers of End Stage Renal Disease
Care to Cooperate with End Stage Renal Disease Network Plans and Goals and Failure to
Follow End Stage Renal Disease Medical Review Board Recommendations—Section
1881(c)(3) and (g) [42 U.S.C.A. 1395rr(c)(3) and (g)]

§ 5:57 Issuing Medicare Supplemental Health Insurance Policies in Violation of State or Federal
Standards—Section 1882(a)(2) [42 U.S.C.A. 1395ss(a)(2)]

§ 5:58 Misrepresentation and Fraud in Obtaining and Using Secretarial Certification of Medicare
Supplemental Health Insurance Policies—Section 1882(d)(1) [42 U.S.C.A. 1395ss(d)(1)]

§ 5:59 Misrepresentation by Sellers of Medicare Supplemental Health Insurance Policies That They
Act by Authority of or in Association with Medicare or Any Federal Agency—Section
1882(d)(2) [42 U.S.C.A. 1395ss(d)(2)]

§ 5:60 Selling Medicare Beneficiaries Supplemental Health Insurance Policies That Duplicate
Medicare Benefits/Not Obtaining a Valid Buyer’s Statement/Not Preparing Seller’s
Acknowledgment/Failing to Comply with Disclosure Requirements—Section 1882(d)(3) [42
U.S.C.A. 1395ss(d)(3)]

§ 5:61 Using the Mail to Market Medicare Supplemental Health Insurance Policies Which Have Not
Been State-Approved—Section 1882(d)(4) [42 U.S.C.A. 1395ss(d)(4)]

§ 5:62 Issuing or Selling Medicare Supplemental Health Insurance Policies That Do Not Comply
with Form and Content Requirements—Section 1882(p)(8) [42 U.S.C.A. 1395ss(p)(8)]

§ 5:63 Failure to Offer a Medicare Supplemental Health Insurance Policy That Provides Only the
Core Group of Basic Benefits—Section 1882(p)(9)(C) [42 U.S.C.A. 1395ss(p)(9)(C)]
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§ 5:64 Failure to Provide Reinstatement Rights to Purchasers of Medicare Supplemental Health
Insurance Policies Who Become Eligible for Medicaid—Section 1882(q)(5) [42 U.S.C.A.
1395ss(q)(5)]

§ 5:65 Failure by Issuers of Medicare Supplemental Health Insurance Policies to Meet
Requirements for Preexisting Conditions, Waiting Periods, Elimination Periods,
Probationary Periods, and Price and Coverage Nondiscrimination—Section 1882(s)(3) [42
U.S.C.A. 1395ss(s)(3)]

§ 5:66 Special Obligations for Issuers of Medicare Supplemental Health Insurance Policies Who
Provide Benefits through Contracts with Networks of Providers (Medicare Select)—Section
1882(t)(2) [42 U.S.C.A. 1395ss(t)(2)]

§ 5:67 Failure by Issuers of Medicare Supplemental Insurance to Comply with Prohibition on Sale,
Issuance, and Renewal of Medicare Supplemental Plans That Provide Prescription Drug
Coverage—Section 1882(v) [42 U.S.C.A. 1395ss-(v)]

§ 5:68 Terminating Provider Agreements of Hospital Providers of Extended Care Services—Section
1883 [42 U.S.C.A. 1395tt]

§ 5:69 Withholding Medicare Payments from Overpaid Medicaid Providers—Section 1885 [42
U.S.C.A. 1395vv]

§ 5:70 Discontinuing and Reducing Payments to Hospitals for Inpatient Hospital Services in States
Which Have Alternative (Non-Federal DRG) Hospital Reimbursement Systems—Section
1886(c) [42 U.S.C.A. 1395ww(c)]

§ 5:71 Unnecessary Hospital Admissions and Other Inappropriate Practices by Hospitals to
Circumvent Reimbursement Requirements—Section 1886(f) [42 U.S.C.A. 1395ww(f)]

§ 5:72 Giving a Home Health Agency Advance Notice of a Standard Survey—Section 1891(c)(1) [42
U.S.C.A. 1395bbb(c)(1)]

§ 5:73 Failure by a Home Health Agency to Comply with Medicare Conditions of Participation—
Sections 1891(e) and (f) [42 U.S.C.A. 1395bbb(e) and (f)]

§ 5:74 Offsetting Medicare Payments to Individuals to Collect Past-Due Obligations Arising from
Breach of Scholarship and Loan Contracts—Section 1892 [42 U.S.C.A. 1395ccc]

§ 5:75 Termination of Pace Provider Agreements—Section 1894 [42 U.S.C. A. 1395eee]

CHAPTER 6. REGULATIONS: SANCTIONS IN THE MEDICAID
STATUTE
§ 6:1 Publicizing Findings of State Surveys of Health Care Facilities—Section 1902(a)(36) [42

U.S.C.A. 1396a(a)(36)]
§ 6:2 Additional Penalties for Persons or Entities Sanctioned by Exclusion under Section 1128 or

under Section 1128A—Section 1902(a)(39) [42 U.S.C.A. 1396a(a)(39)]
§ 6:3 Disclosing Information about Sanctions Against Health Care Practitioners and Providers—

Section 1902(a)(49) and Section 1921 [42 U.S.C.A. 1396a(a)(49) and 42 U.S.C.A. 1396r-2]
§ 6:4 Billing Medicaid Eligibles or Financially Responsible Relatives or Representatives for

Medical Expenses When Third Parties Are Liable to Pay—Sections 1902(g) and 1902(a)(25)
[42 U.S.C.A. 1396a(g) and 1396a(a)(25)]

§ 6:5 Failure by an Intermediate Care Facility for the Mentally Retarded to Comply with Medicaid
Conditions for Participation—Section 1902(i) [42 U.S.C.A. 1396a(i)]

§ 6:6 Overcharging Medicaid Eligibles Who Are Qualified Medicare Beneficiaries—Section
1902(n)(3) [42 U.S.C.A. 1396a(n)(3)]

§ 6:7 Providing Medicaid Exclusions for the Same Grounds as Medicare Exclusions—Section
1902(p)(1) [42 U.S.C.A. 1396a(p)(1)]

§ 6:8 Excluding Health Maintenance Organizations and Other Entities Authorized to Implement
Primary Care Case Management or Specialty Physician Services—Section 1902(p)(2) [42
U.S.C.A. 1396a(p)(2)]

§ 6:9 Terminations of Medicaid Certification of and Intermediate Sanctions for Psychiatric
Hospitals—Section 1902(y) [42 U.S.C.A. 1396a(y)]

§ 6:10 Failure by Health Maintenance Organizations to Comply with Medicaid Requirements—
Section 1903(m)(5) [42 U.S.C.A. 1396b(m)(5)]

§ 6:11 Failure by States to Meet Medicaid Plan Requirements—Section 1904 [42 U.S.C.A. 1396c]
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§ 6:12 Cancelling Certification and Approval of Skilled Nursing Facilities, Intermediate Care
Facilities, and Intermediate Care Facilities for the Mentally Retarded—Section 1910 [42
U.S.C.A. 1396i]

§ 6:13 Disapproving Rural Health Clinic Applications for Certification—Section 1910(a) [42 U.S.C.A.
1396i(a)]

§ 6:14 Requiring States to Withhold Medicaid Underpayments to Offset Medicare Overpayments—
Section 1914 [42 U.S.C.A. 1396m]

§ 6:15 Failure by Nursing Facilities to Comply with Medicaid Requirements for Resident
Assessments—Section 1919(b) [42 U.S.C.A. 1396r(b)]

§ 6:16 Abuse or Neglect of Nursing Facility Residents or Misappropriation of Their Property—
Section 1919(g)(1)(C) [42 U.S.C.A. 1396r(g)(1)(C)]

§ 6:17 Giving Nursing Facilities Advance Notice of a Survey—Section 1919(g)(2)(A)(i) [42 U.S.C.A.
1396r(g)(2)(A)(i)]

§ 6:18 Failing a Nursing Facility Survey—Section 1919(g)(5), and 1919(h) [42 U.S.C.A. 1396r(g)(5),
1396r(h)]

§ 6:19 Failure by Intermediate Care Facilities for the Mentally Retarded to Meet Federal
Standards—Section 1922 [42 U.S.C.A. 1396r-3]

§ 6:20 Failure by Drug Manufacturers and Wholesalers to Comply with Medicaid Drug Rebate
Requirements—Section 1927 [42 U.S.C.A. 1396s]

§ 6:21 Giving Advance Notice of a Survey to a Community Care Setting for Functionally Disabled
Elderly Individuals—Section 1929(i)(3)(A) [42 U.S.C.A. 1396u(i)(3)(A)]

§ 6:22 Neglect and Abuse and Misappropriation of Property of Individuals in Home and Community
Care Settings for Functionally Disabled Elderly Individuals—Section 1929(i)(5) [42 U.S.C.A.
1396u(i)(5)]

§ 6:23 Disclosure of Inspection Reports and Activities Related to Home and Community Care
Settings for Functionally Disabled Elderly Individuals—Section 1929(i)(6) [42 U.S.C.A.
1396u(i)(6)]

§ 6:24 Failure by Home and Community Care Settings for Functionally Disabled Elderly
Individuals to Comply with Medicaid Requirements—Section 1929(j) [42 U.S.C.A. 1396u(j)]

§ 6:25 Failure by Providers of Community Supported Living Arrangements Services to Comply with
Statutory Requirements—Section 1930(h)(2) [42 U.S.C.A. 1396v(h)(2)]

§ 6:26 Failure by Medicaid Managed Care Organizations to Comply with Fraud and Abuse
Protection Requirements—Sections 1932(d) and (e) [42 U.S.C.A. 1396u-2(e)]

§ 6:27 Termination of Medicaid Contracts with Managed Care Entities—Section 1932(e)(4) [42
U.S.C.A. 1396u-2(e)(4)]

§ 6:28 Termination of Medicaid Pace Provider Agreements—Section 1934(e)(5) [42 U.S.C.A.
1396u-4(e)(5)]

§ 6:29 Intermediate Sanctions for Medicaid Pace Providers—Section 1934(e)(6)(B) [42 U.S.C.A.
1396u-4(e)(6)(B)]

CHAPTER 7. REGULATIONS: SANCTIONS IN TITLE XI
§ 7:1 Disclosure of Information in the Possession of the Secretary of Health and Human Services—

Section 1106 [42 U.S.C.A. 1306]
§ 7:2 False Representations about Requirements of the Social Security Act—Section 1107(a) [42

U.S.C.A. 1307]
§ 7:3 False Representations to Elicit Information from the Secretary of Health and Human

Services—Section 1107(b) [42 U.S.C.A. 1307(b)]
§ 7:4 Failure to Comply with State Health Planning Requirements—Section 1122 [42 U.S.C.A.

1320a-1]
§ 7:5 Failure to Comply with Subpoenas Issued by the Comptroller General—Section 1125(b) [42

U.S.C.A. 1320a-4(b)]
§ 7:6 Exclusion from Medicare and State Health Care Programs—Section 1128 [42 U.S.C.A.

1320a-6]
§ 7:7 Disclosure by Institutions, Organizations, and Agencies of Owners and Other Individuals

Sanctioned or Convicted and of Certain Business Relationships—Sections 1128(b)(9) and
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(10), 1124, 1124A, and 1126 [42 U.S.C.A. 1320a-7(b)(9) and (10), 1320a-3, 1320a-3a, and
1320a-5]

§ 7:8 Civil Money Penalties—Section 1128A [42 U.S.C.A. 1320a-7a]
§ 7:9 Criminal Penalties: False Statements, False Representations, Concealment, Failure to

Disclose, and Conversion with Respect to Benefits and Payments—Section 1128B(a) [42
U.S.C.A. 1320a-7b(a)]

§ 7:10 Criminal Penalties: Kickbacks, Bribes, and Rebates—Section 1128B(b) [42 U.S.C.A.
1320a-7b(b)]

§ 7:11 Criminal Penalties: False Statements and False Representations to Qualify for Provider
Status—Section 1128B(c) [42 U.S.C.A. 1320a-7b(c)]

§ 7:12 Criminal Penalties: Excessive Medicaid Charges and Unlawful Financial Preconditions for
Care in Hospitals and Nursing Facilities—Section 1128B(d) [42 U.S.C.A. 1320a-7b(d)]

§ 7:13 Criminal Penalties: Violating a Physician or Supplier Participation Agreement or a Medicare
Assignment of Benefits Agreement—Section 1128B(e) [42 U.S.C.A. 1320a-7b(e)]

§ 7:14 Failure to Report Information about Final Adverse Actions Against Health Care Providers,
Suppliers, and Practitioners to the National Health Care Fraud and Abuse Data Collection
Program—Section 1128E(b)(6) [42 U.S.C.A. 1320a-7e(b)(6)]

§ 7:15 Failure to Comply with Requirements to Report Physician Ownership and Investment
Interests and Requirements for Transparency Reports-Section 1128G [42 U.S.C.A. 1320a-7h]

§ 7:16 Failure to Comply with Accountability Requirements for Medicaid Nursing Facilities and
Medicare Skilled Nursing Facilities-Section 1128I [42 U.S.C.A. 1320a-7(j)]

§ 7:17 Failure to Timely Report and Return Overpayments and to Comply with Medicare and
Medicaid Program Integrity Provisions-Section 1128j [42 U.S.C.A. 1320a-7(k)]
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